BEAM INC Form DEF 14A March 12, 2013 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

Beam Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

 $(Name\ of\ Person(s)\ Filing\ Proxy\ Statement,\ if\ other\ than\ the\ Registrant)$

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- " Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
(5)	Total fee paid:
Chec	paid previously with preliminary materials. As box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing Party:
(4)	Date Filed:

Table of Contents	
March 11, 2013	
Dear Fellow Stockholder:	
You are cordially invited to attend the Beam Inc. Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. (CDT) at the Renaissance Chicago North Shore Hotel, 933 Skokie Boulevard, Northbrook, Illinois. At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to consider the matters set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement.	
Beam s first year as a focused standalone spirits company was one of great progress and excellent results. We look forward to presenting a she program on company developments and future prospects immediately following the Annual Meeting.	or
We are very pleased that Gretchen Price, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Administrative Officer of Arbonne Internation LLC, joined the Beam Board during 2012 and is a new Director nominee at the Annual Meeting this year.	ıal
On behalf of the full Board of Directors, thank you for your continued support of Beam.	
Sincerely,	
A. D. David Mackay	
Chairman of the Board of Directors	

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING

AND PROXY STATEMENT

March 11, 2013

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Beam Inc. (Beam or the Company) will be held on Tuesday, April 23, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. (CDT) at the Renaissance Chicago North Shore Hotel, 933 Skokie Boulevard, Northbrook, Illinois. Stockholders will be asked to consider the following matters:

- Item 1: The election of the eight director nominees identified in this Proxy Statement for a one-year term expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting (see pages 5 to 9 of the Proxy Statement);
- Item 2: The ratification of the appointment by the Company s Audit Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013 (see page 55 of the Proxy Statement);
- Item 3: An advisory vote to approve the compensation paid to the Company s named executive officers (see pages 55 to 57 of the Proxy Statement); and

such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Stockholders of record at the close of business on February 22, 2013, the record date for the meeting, are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT. WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR PROXY OR VOTING INSTRUCTIONS AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. You may submit your proxy (1) by mail using a traditional proxy card, (2) by telephone at 1-800-579-1639, or (3) through the Internet at www.proxyvote.com. If you hold your shares through a broker or bank, you may submit your voting instructions by following the instructions on the form you received from your broker or bank.

PLEASE CONFIRM YOUR PREFERENCE FOR ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE ANNUAL MEETING MATERIALS.

You can expedite delivery of your annual meeting materials and avoid costly mailings by confirming in advance your preferred method of delivery. For further information on how to take advantage of this cost-saving service, please refer to the accompanying proxy card.

The Proxy Statement and accompanying proxy card are being distributed to stockholders on or about March 14, 2013.

Kenton	R.	Rose

Senior Vice President, General Counsel,

Chief Administrative Officer and Secretary

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be Held on Tuesday, April 23, 2013.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 are available at www.proxyvote.com.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	1
Frequently Asked Questions	1
ITEM 1 ELECTION F DIRECTORS	5
Corporate Governance	9
Corporate Governance Principles	9
Changes to Board Composition in 2012	9
Director Independence	10
Policies with Respect to Transactions with Related Persons	10
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	11
Communication with the Board	11
Board Leadership Structure	11
Executive Sessions	12
Meeting Attendance	12
Risk Management	12
Compensation Risks	13
Board Committees	13
Audit Committee	14
Compensation Committee	15
Compensation Committee Procedures	16
Compensation Committee Procedures Compensation Committee Consultant	16
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	17
Compensation Committee Interlocks and histoer Farticipation Corporate Responsibility Committee	17
Executive Committee	
	17
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee	18
Director Nomination Process Other Company of Company of Process	18
Other Corporate Governance Resources	19
Director Compensation	20 21
Stock Ownership of Board Members	21
Executive Compensation	
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	22
Compensation Committee Report	39
2012 Executive Compensation	40
2012 Summary Compensation Table	40
2012 Grants of Plan-Based Awards	42
Non-Equity Incentive Plan	43
Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan	43
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year-End	44
2012 Option Exercises and Stock Vested	45
2012 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	45
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	46
Equity Compensation Plan Information	52
	32
Audit Committee Matters	
Report of the Audit Committee	53
Fees of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	54
Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services	54
ITEM 2 RATIFICATIONOF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	55
ITEM 3 ADVISORY VOTEO APPROVE THE COMPENSATION PAID TO THE COMPANY S NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	55
Securities Ownership of Management, Directors and Certain Other Persons	
Certain Information Regarding Security Holdings	58
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	59

Submission of Stockholder Proposals and Nominations	60
MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS	60
APPENDIX A RECONCILIATION NON-GAAP MEASURES	A-1

INTRODUCTION

The enclosed proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directors (the Board of Directors or Board) of Beam Inc. (the Company) to be voted at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Tuesday, April 23, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. (CDT) at the Renaissance Chicago North Shore Hotel, 933 Skokie Boulevard, Northbrook, Illinois. This Proxy Statement and accompanying proxy card are being distributed to stockholders on or about March 14, 2013.

Stockholders of record at the close of business on February 22, 2013, the record date for the meeting, are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On that date there were outstanding 160,415,030 shares of the Company s common stock, each of which is entitled to one vote. The presence at the meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority in voting power of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote will constitute a quorum. Proxies received but marked as abstentions or broker non-votes will be included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the meeting.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Why am I receiving these materials?

The Company has made these materials available to you on the Internet or has delivered printed versions of these materials to you by mail in connection with the solicitation of proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors for use at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders on April 23, 2013. This Proxy Statement describes the matters on which you, as a stockholder, are entitled to vote. It also gives you information on these matters so that you can make an informed decision.

Why did I receive a one-page Notice in the mail regarding the Internet availability of proxy materials this year instead of printed proxy materials?

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) permits companies to furnish proxy materials to stockholders by providing access to these documents over the Internet instead of mailing a printed copy. Accordingly, we mailed a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the Notice) to certain stockholders. These stockholders have the ability to access, view and print the proxy materials on a website referred to in the Notice and also request a printed set of proxy materials if desired.

If I received a printed copy of the proxy materials, how may I choose to receive future proxy materials by email?

If you received a printed copy of our proxy materials, you may choose to receive future proxy materials by email. Choosing to receive your future proxy materials by email will lower our costs of delivery and will reduce the environmental impact of our Annual Meeting. If you choose to receive our future proxy materials by email, you will receive an email next year with instructions containing a link to view those proxy materials and a link to the proxy voting site. Your election to receive proxy materials by email will remain in effect until you terminate it or for so long as the email address provided by you is valid.

1

What items will be voted on at the Annual Meeting?

Stockholders will vote on the following items at the Annual Meeting, if each is properly presented at the meeting:

the election of the directors identified in this Proxy Statement;

the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013;

the advisory approval of the compensation paid to the Company s named executive officers; and

such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting.

In addition, management will respond to questions from stockholders.

What are the Board s voting recommendations?

The Board s recommendation is set forth below and together with the description of each Item in this Proxy Statement. In summary, the Board recommends a vote **FOR:**

Item 1, the election of the directors identified in this Proxy Statement;

Item 2, the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013; and

Item 3, the advisory approval of the compensation paid to the Company s named executive officers.

What is the difference between being a record holder and a beneficial owner of shares held in street name?

A record holder holds shares directly in his or her own name with the Company s transfer agent. Shares held in street name refer to shares that are held in the name of a bank or broker on a person s behalf. The majority of stockholders hold their shares in street name. For such shares, the bank or broker is considered the stockholder of record for purposes of voting at the Annual Meeting. As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct that organization on how to vote the shares held in your account.

How do I vote?

If you received a Notice in the mail, you can either vote by Internet (www.proxyvote.com) or in person at the Annual Meeting. Record holders that received a copy of this Proxy Statement and accompanying proxy card in the mail can vote by filling out the proxy card and returning it in the postage paid return envelope. Record holders that receive these materials in the mail may also vote in person at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, by telephone (800-579-1639) or by Internet (www.proxyvote.com). Voting instructions are provided on both the Notice of Internet Availability and the proxy card.

If you hold shares in street name, you must vote by giving instructions to your bank or broker. You should follow the voting instructions on the form that you receive from your bank or broker. The availability of telephone or Internet voting will depend on your bank s or broker s voting process.

2

How will my proxy be voted?

Your proxy card, when properly signed and returned to us, or processed by telephone or via the Internet, and not revoked prior to the Annual Meeting, will be voted in accordance with your instructions. We are not aware of any other matter that may be properly presented other than those described above. If any other matter is properly presented, the persons named in the enclosed proxy card will have discretion to vote in their best judgment.

If you hold shares in street name, your bank or broker is permitted to use its own discretion and vote your shares on certain routine matters (such as Item 2) even if you have not provided voting instructions. Your bank or broker is not permitted to use discretion and vote your shares on non-routine matters (such as Items 1 and 3) if it has not received instructions from you as to how to vote the shares. *Therefore, we urge you to give voting instructions to your broker on all three voting items*. Shares that are not permitted to be voted by your broker with respect to any matter are called broker non-votes. Broker non-votes are not considered votes for or against, or entitled to vote with respect to, a proposal and will have no direct impact on any proposal.

What if I don t mark the boxes on my proxy?

Unless you give other instructions on your proxy card, or unless you give other instructions when you cast your vote by telephone or the Internet, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

How many votes are needed to approve an item?

The nominees for director, in non-contested elections, must receive a majority of the votes cast at the meeting, in person or by proxy, to be elected. Under the Company s majority vote By-law provision relating to the election of directors, if the number of votes cast for a director nominee does not exceed the number of votes cast against the director nominee, then the director must tender his or her resignation from the Board promptly after the certification of the stockholder vote. The Board will decide within 90 days of that certification, through a process managed by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and excluding the nominee in question, whether to accept the resignation. The Board s explanation of its decision will be promptly disclosed in a filing with the SEC. A proxy card marked to abstain authority for the election of one or more directors will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated.

The affirmative vote of shares representing a majority in voting power of the common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote is necessary for approval of Items 2 and 3. Proxy cards marked as abstentions on Items 2 and 3 will not be voted and will have the effect of a negative vote.

Can I go to the Annual Meeting if I vote by proxy?

Yes. Attending the meeting does not revoke your proxy.

How can I revoke my proxy?

You may revoke your proxy at any time before the Annual Meeting by giving written notice to the Secretary of the Company at our principal executive office at 510 Lake Cook Road, Deerfield, Illinois 60015 or by delivering a later dated proxy or attending the Annual Meeting in person and voting your shares.

3

Are there any requirements if I plan on attending the Annual Meeting?

If you wish to attend the Annual Meeting, you may be asked to present valid photo identification. Please note that if you hold your shares in street name, you will need to bring a copy of your voting instruction card or brokerage statement reflecting your stock ownership as of the record date and check in at the registration desk at the meeting. Cameras, sound or video recording devices or any similar equipment, or the distribution of any printed materials, will not be permitted at the meeting without the approval of the Company.

Will my vote be public?

As a matter of policy, stockholder proxies, ballots and tabulations that identify individual stockholders are not publicly disclosed, but are available to the independent Inspector of Election, the proxy solicitation firm and certain employees of the Company.

What if I am a participant in the Beam Retirement Savings Plan?

We are mailing this Proxy Statement and a proxy card to participants in the Beam Retirement Savings Plan (the Savings Plan) who invest in the Beam Stock Fund under the Savings Plan. The Trustee, as record holder of Beam s common stock held in the Savings Plan, will vote whole shares attributable to your interest in the Beam Stock Fund in accordance with your directions given on the proxy card, by telephone or the Internet. If you invest in the Beam Stock Fund under the Savings Plan and you sign and return the enclosed proxy card, we will forward it to the Trustee of the Savings Plan. The proxy card will serve as instructions to the Trustee to vote the whole shares attributable to your interest in the manner you indicate on the proxy card. If you do not timely return the proxy card, the Trustee will vote the shares attributable to your interests in Beam Stock Fund in the same manner and proportion as the interests with respect to which voting instructions have been timely received, unless contrary to applicable law. If you return a signed proxy card that covers shares attributable to your interest in the Beam Stock Fund but do not provide voting instructions for some or all of the matters to be voted on, your shares will be voted on all uninstructed matters in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

4

Item	1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of eight members. The Board proposes that the eight nominees described below be re-elected for a new term of one year expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Each of the nominees has consented to be named as a nominee and to serve as director if elected. If any of the nominees should become unavailable to serve as a director (which is not now expected), the Board may designate a substitute nominee. In that case, the persons named in your proxy to represent you and vote your shares will vote for the substitute nominee designated by the Board.

The names of the nominees, along with their present positions, their principal occupations and directorships held with other public corporations during the past five years, their ages and the year first elected as a director of the Company, are set forth below.

Summary of Qualification of Directors

The Board believes that it is necessary for each of the Company s directors to possess many qualities and skills. When searching for new candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (the Nominating Committee) considers the evolving needs of the Board and searches for candidates who fill any current or anticipated future need. The Board also believes that all directors must possess a considerable amount of business management experience (such as experience as a chief executive officer, chief financial officer or other senior executive officer) and educational experience. The Nominating Committee first considers a candidate s management experience and then considers issues of judgment, background, stature, conflicts of interest, integrity, ethics and commitment to the goal of maximizing stockholder value when considering director candidates. The Nominating Committee also focuses on issues of diversity, such as diversity of gender, race and national origin, education, professional experience and differences in viewpoints and skills. The Nominating Committee does not have a formal policy with respect to diversity, but the Board and the Nominating Committee believe that it is essential that the Board members represent diverse viewpoints. In considering candidates for the Board, the Nominating Committee considers the entirety of each candidate s credentials in the context of these standards. With respect to the nomination of continuing directors for re-election, the individual s contributions to the Board are also considered.

The process undertaken by the Nominating Committee in recommending qualified director candidates is described below under Corporate Governance Director Nomination Process (see pages 18 and 19 of this Proxy Statement). The Board believes that there are certain general requirements that are critical for service on the Board, while there are other skills and experiences that should be represented on the Board as a whole but not necessarily by each individual director.

General requirements for all directors:

Extensive executive leadership experience;

Excellent business judgment;

5

Table of Contents High level of integrity and ethics; Extensive compliance and risk management experience; Original and entrepreneurial thinking; and Strong commitment to the Company s goal of maximizing stockholder value. Experiences, qualifications, and backgrounds to be represented on the Board as a whole: Financial and/or accounting expertise; Consumer products expertise; Diversity of background; Knowledge of international markets; Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer experience; and Extensive board experience.

Table of Contents 18

6

Ann F. Hackett

Certain individual qualifications and experiences of the director nominees that contribute to the Board s effectiveness as a whole are described in the following paragraphs.

Present positions and offices

with the Company, principal

	occupations and other directorships			
Name	during the past five years	Age	director	
Richard A. Goldstein	Retired since May 2006; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of International Flavors & Fragrances Inc., a manufacturer of flavor and fragrance products, from June 2000 until May 2006. Currently also a director of The Interpublic Group of Companies, Inc., Fiduciary Trust Company International and Fortune Brands Home & Security, Inc. Formerly a director of International Flavors & Fragrances Inc.	71	2006	

Richard Goldstein s background as a lawyer, and his 30-year background in consumer packaged goods as Chief Executive Officer of a supplier to consumer goods companies, provides a unique perspective to the Board.

	President and Chief Executive Officer of Mead Johnson Nutrition	58	2011
	Company, a manufacturer of pediatric nutrition products, since September		
	2008; President of Mead Johnson from January 2004 to September 2008;		
Stephen W. Golsby	President, International of Mead Johnson from 2001 to 2003. Currently also a director of Mead Johnson Nutrition Company.		

Stephen Golsby is currently the Chief Executive Officer of a publicly-traded global consumer products company. He brings to the Board extensive consumer products company leadership experience and valuable insights with respect to international operations.

2007

Ann Hackett founded a company that provides strategic, organizational and human resource consulting services to boards of directors and senior management teams. She brings to the Board entrepreneurial experience and expertise in strategy and human resources.

Present positions and offices

with the Company, principal

Name	occupations and other directorships during the past five years Age		
	Retired since January 2011; President and Chief Executive Officer of Kellogg Company, a ready-to-eat cereal and convenience foods company, from December 2006 until December 2010; President and Chief Operating	57	2006
A.D. David Mackay	Officer of Kellogg Company from September 2003 to December 2006. Currently also a director of Fortune Brands Home & Security, Inc., Green		
(Chairman of the Board)	Mountain Coffee Roasters, Inc. and Woolworths Limited. Formerly a director of Kellogg Company.		

David Mackay served as Chief Executive Officer of one of the world s premier packaged goods companies, bringing to our Board the perspective of a leader who faced similar external economic, social and governance issues to those that face our Company.

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Administrative
Officer of Arbonne International, LLC, a prestige personal care products
company, since July 2011; Executive Vice President, Administration and
Chief Financial Officer of Philosophy, Inc. from 2008 to July 2011;
various senior leadership positions at Procter & Gamble prior to 2008,
most recently as Vice President of Finance. Currently also a director of
Cincinnati Financial Corporation.

2012

Gretchen Price serves as the Chief Financial Officer of an international consumer products company. She brings to the Board valuable experience and expertise in accounting, auditing and financial reporting.

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since October

2011; President and Chief Executive Officer of Beam Global Spirits &
Wine, Inc. from March 2009 to October 2011; Region President of
Cadbury Plc, a confectionary company, from 2003 to 2008; Chief
Operating Officer of Unilever Best Foods North America, a leading
consumer goods company, from 2000 to 2002; various senior leadership
positions at Unilever from 1986 to 2000. Currently also a director of V.F.
Corporation.

Matthew Shattock s day-to-day leadership as President and Chief Executive Officer of Beam Inc. provides him with intimate knowledge of our business strategy and operations. Matthew Shattock also serves as an important liaison between management and the independent directors of the Board.

Present positions and offices

with the Company, principal

	occupations and other directorships			
Name	during the past five years		director	
Robert A. Steele	Retired since September 2011; Vice Chairman Global Health and Well Being of Procter & Gamble, a consumer brands company, from July 2007 to September 2011; Group President Global Household Care of Procter & Gamble from April 2006 to July 2007. Formerly a director of Kellogg Company.	57	2011	

Robert Steele possesses particular knowledge and experience in accounting and financial matters. He has extensive understanding of the branded consumer products industry and provides the Board insights into consumer dynamics, manufacturing and supply chain, marketing and the retail environment.

Retired since March 2004; Chairman of Gallaher Group Plc, a UK-based 71 1994 company, from May 1997 through March 2004. Formerly a director of Kesa Electricals plc.

Peter M. Wilson

In addition to a career of over 45 years in marketing consumer goods, Peter Wilson s experience as Chief Executive Officer of a UK-based, international consumer goods company provides the Board with a global perspective.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the election of each nominee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Principles

The Board has adopted Corporate Governance Principles, which are available at http://investor.beamglobal.com under the tab Corporate Governance Company Policies. The Principles describe our corporate governance practices and address corporate governance issues such as Board composition and responsibilities, compensation of directors and executive succession planning.

Changes to Board Composition in 2012

On July 23, 2012, the Board unanimously elected Gretchen Price as a new director. The Board currently consists of eight members, all of whom have been nominated for election for a term of one year expiring at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Director Independence

The Company s Corporate Governance Principles provide that a majority of the members of the Board, and each member of the Audit, Compensation and Benefits and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees, shall be independent directors. The Board applies the definition of independence found in the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual in determining which directors are independent.

Applying that definition, Richard Goldstein, Stephen Golsby, Ann Hackett, David Mackay, Gretchen Price, Robert Steele and Peter Wilson were affirmatively determined by the Board to be independent. The Board reached the same determination with respect to Pierre Leroy, who served as a director until February 22, 2012, and Anne Tatlock, who served as a director until April 24, 2012. Due to Matthew Shattock's employment with the Company, he is not considered independent. When considering each director is independence, the Board determined that none of the non-employee directors has any material relationship with the Company other than being a director and stockholder or has engaged in any transaction or arrangement that interferes with such director is independence.

Policies with Respect to Transactions with Related Persons

The Nominating Committee has adopted a written Code of Conduct and Ethics that sets forth various policies and procedures intended to promote the ethical behavior of the Company s employees, officers and directors. The Code of Conduct and Ethics describes the Company s policy on conflicts of interest. The Company has established a Global Risk and Compliance Committee, the members of which are executive officers of the Company, which is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Code of Conduct. The Global Risk and Compliance Committee periodically reports on the Company s compliance efforts to the Audit Committee and to the Board.

The Company has also established a Conflicts of Interest Committee, the members of which are executive officers of the Company, which distributes a Conflicts of Interest Policy to the Company s employees, officers and directors. The Conflicts of Interest Policy describes the types of relationships that may constitute a conflict of interest with the Company. Employees, officers and directors are required to periodically complete a questionnaire about potential conflicts of interest and certify compliance with the Company s policy. The Conflicts of Interest Committee reviews potential conflicts of interest and reports its findings to the Audit Committee.

The executive officers and the directors are also required to complete a questionnaire on an annual basis which requires them to disclose any related person transactions and potential conflicts of interest. The General Counsel reviews the responses to the questionnaires and, if a transaction is reported by a director or executive officer, the questionnaire is submitted to the Chair of the Audit Committee for review. If necessary, the Audit Committee will determine whether the relationship is material and will present a conflict of interest. After making such determination, the Audit Committee will report its recommendation on whether the transaction should be approved or ratified by the entire Board

10

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

During 2012, the Company did not participate in any transactions in which any of its directors, executive officers, any immediate family member of a director or executive officer or any beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company s common stock had a direct or indirect material interest.

Communication with the Board

The Board and management encourage communication from the Company s stockholders. Stockholders who wish to communicate with the Company s management should direct their communication to the Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary of Beam Inc. at 510 Lake Cook Road, Deerfield, Illinois 60015. Stockholders, or other interested parties, who wish to communicate with the non-management directors or any individual director should direct their communication care of the Secretary at the address above. The Secretary will forward communications intended for the Board to the Chairman of the Board, or, if intended for an individual director, to that director. If multiple communications are received on a similar topic, the Secretary may, in his discretion, forward only representative correspondence. Any communications that are abusive, harassing, in bad taste or present safety or security concerns may be handled differently.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board believes that its leadership structure is an integral part of the overall governance process and is a matter to be considered based upon all of the relevant facts and circumstances. The Company s By-laws provide that the Chairman of the Board will be the Chief Executive Officer unless determined otherwise by the Board. Retaining flexibility to allocate the responsibilities of the offices of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in any way that is in the best interests of our Company at a given point in time based upon then-prevailing circumstances is critical. The Board believes that the decision as to who should serve in those roles, and whether the offices should be combined or separate, should be assessed periodically by the Board, and that the Board should not be constrained by a rigid policy mandate when making these determinations.

The positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board are currently held by separate individuals, with Matthew Shattock serving as our President and Chief Executive Officer and David Mackay serving as our independent non-executive Chairman of the Board. We believe this structure is optimal for the Company at this time because it allows Matthew Shattock to focus on our business strategy and operations. At the same time, the Chairman can focus on the leadership of the Board of Directors, including presiding at all Board meetings and the Annual Meeting of Stockholders; establishing Board meeting agendas in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairs of the Board committees; acting as a liaison between the non-employee directors and the Company s management; advising the Chief Executive Officer of the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information from Company management to enable the independent directors to effectively and responsibly perform their duties; facilitating teamwork and communication among non-employee directors; and maintaining frequent contact with the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company s Corporate Governance Principles call for the designation of a Lead Director when the positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board are held by the same person. The designation of a Lead Director is unnecessary at this time due to the separation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board positions.

11

Executive Sessions

Pursuant to the Company s Corporate Governance Principles, non-management directors of the Board meet on a regularly scheduled basis without the presence of management.

Meeting Attendance

Last year there were seven meetings of the Board. Each incumbent director attended at least 75% of the total meetings of the Board (held during the period for which he or she was a director) and committees of the Board on which he or she served (during the periods that he or she served). In addition to participation at Board and committee meetings, our directors regularly engage throughout the year in personal meetings and other communications, including considerable telephone contact with the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board and others regarding matters of interest and concern to the Company.

The Company does not have a formal policy requiring members of the Board to attend the Annual Meeting, although all directors are strongly encouraged to attend. All members of the Board who were elected at the 2012 Annual Meeting attended the meeting.

Risk Management

The responsibility for the day-to-day management of risks lies with the Company s management team; however, the Board of Directors has an active role, as a whole and also at the committee level, in overseeing the strategy and process for managing the Company s risks. The Board regularly reviews information regarding the Company s business strategy, leadership development, resource allocation, succession planning, credit, liquidity and operations, as well as the risks associated with each.

Management periodically identifies external, strategic, operational, financial, compliance and other risks, assesses the impact of these risks and determines how to mitigate such risks. The Audit Committee oversees the Company s risk management program and reviews the results of management s assessment. Management also provides the Audit Committee with updates on the Company s risks, changes and/or emerging risks. In addition, the Audit Committee oversees management of the Company s financial risks. The Company s Compensation and Benefits Committee (the Compensation Committee) is responsible for overseeing the management of risks relating to the compensation paid to the Company s executives and the Company s executive compensation plans and programs. During 2012, the Compensation Committee s independent consultant, Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC (Meridian), assisted with an assessment of risks associated with the Company s compensation practices and programs. For more information about that assessment see Compensation Risks below. The Nominating Committee evaluates risks associated with the independence of the Board of Directors, potential conflicts of interest and the Company s corporate governance structure. The Corporate Responsibility Committee evaluates risks associated with corporate social responsibility issues. While each committee is responsible for evaluating certain risks and overseeing the management of such risks, the entire Board of Directors is regularly informed through committee reports about such risks. The Board s assignment of responsibility for the oversight of specific risks to its committees enables the entire Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the Board, to better

Table of Contents 25

12

monitor the risks of the Company and more effectively develop strategic direction, taking into account the various risks facing the Company, including the magnitude of such risks.

Compensation Risks

We believe that risks arising from our compensation policies and practices for our employees are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, the Compensation Committee believes that the mix and design of the elements of executive compensation do not encourage management to assume excessive risks. The Compensation Committee, with assistance from its independent compensation consultant, reviewed the elements of executive compensation extensively to determine whether any portion of the Company s executive compensation policies and practices encouraged excessive risk taking and concluded:

significant weighting towards long-term incentive compensation discourages short-term risk taking;

rolling three-year performance targets discourage short-term risk taking;

caps on incentive awards and compensation clawback provisions discourage excessive risk taking;

equity ownership guidelines discourage excessive risk taking; and

as a consumer products business, the Company does not face the same level of risks associated with compensation for employees in other industries or sectors, such as financial services (traders and transactions involving instruments with a high degree of risk) or technology (rapidly changing markets).

Furthermore, as described in our Compensation Discussion and Analysis, compensation decisions include independent committee oversight, which prevents excessive risk taking aimed at exploiting formulae or objective evaluation metrics.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Executive Committee, an Audit Committee, a Compensation and Benefits Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a Corporate Responsibility Committee. The Audit, Compensation and Benefits, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees are composed entirely of independent directors, as defined under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual and the Company s Corporate Governance Principles. The charters of these committees (other than the Executive Committee, which does not have a charter) are available on the Company s website at http://investor.beamglobal.com under the tab Corporate Governance Committees of the Board.

A list of current Committee memberships may be found on the Company s website at http://investor.beamglobal.com under the tab Corporate Governance Committees of the Board. The Committee memberships as of the date of this Proxy Statement are set forth below:

Name	Audit	Compensation and Benefits	Corporate Responsibility	Executive	Nominating and Corporate Governance
Richard A. Goldstein	C	and Benefits	Responsibility	X	X
	C	**	**	Α	Λ
Stephen W. Golsby		X	X		
Ann F. Hackett(1)		С			X
A.D. David Mackay	X			C	C
Gretchen W. Price(2)	X				
Matthew J. Shattock			X	X	
Robert A. Steele	X		X		X
Peter M. Wilson		X	C	X	

- An X indicates membership on the committee.
- A C indicates that the director serves as the Chair of the committee.
- (1) Ann Hackett was elected as Chair of the Compensation and Benefits Committee effective April 24, 2012, the date of Anne Tatlock s retirement.
- (2) Gretchen Price was appointed to the Board and the Audit Committee effective July 23, 2012.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held nine meetings in 2012. The Audit Committee s primary functions are to:

Select, retain, evaluate and terminate when appropriate a firm of independent auditors to audit our financial statements and approve the scope of the firm s audit;

Review reports and recommendations of our independent auditors;

Review the scope of all internal audits and related reports and recommendations;

Pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accountants;

Monitor the integrity of the Company s financial statements;

Monitor compliance with financial reporting requirements;

Monitor the independence and performance of our independent auditors, including the lead partner, and the performance of our internal auditors;

Discuss the Company $\,$ s financial statements and its quarterly and annual reports to be filed with the SEC and the adequacy of the Company $\,$ s internal controls and procedures with management and the independent auditors;

Discuss the Company s press releases relating to earnings with management;

Review the Company s policies regarding risk assessment and risk management;

14

Review the Company s compliance programs;

Review and approve related person transactions and conflicts of interest involving directors and executive officers;

Establish procedures for receiving and responding to concerns regarding accounting and auditing matters; and

Review and approve a report, included in this Proxy Statement, disclosing whether the Committee has recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in the Company s Form 10-K.

Each member of the Audit Committee, as of the date of this Proxy Statement, is financially literate, has accounting or financial management expertise and has been determined by our Board to be an audit committee financial expert as defined in Item 407(d)(5)(ii) and (iii) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act). Each Audit Committee member has also been determined by our Board to be independent as such term is defined in Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee held five meetings in 2012. The Compensation Committee is charged with overall responsibility for approving and evaluating all compensation plans, policies and programs affecting the officers of the Company. Among other things, the Compensation Committee has the responsibility to:

Approve the Company s executive pay philosophy;

Administer our Long-Term Incentive Plans and grant stock options, performance awards, restricted stock units and other stock-based awards under the Company s equity-based plans;

Review and approve compensation for the Chief Executive Officer, following the full Board s performance review of the CEO, taking into consideration corporate goals and objectives;

Set compensation (including incentive compensation) for elected officers;

Retain independent advisors (including, as deemed necessary in the Committee s discretion, compensation consultants and legal counsel) who report to the Committee with respect to the evaluation of executive compensation and benefits;

Periodically assess risks associated with the Company s compensation plans;

Oversee management s administration of supplemental retirement, health or other benefit arrangements for eligible officers and receive periodic reports from management;

Approve compensation, employment and severance agreements for officers;

15

Table of Contents

Periodically update the Company s stock ownership guidelines, and review compliance with such guidelines as regularly presented by management;

Approve and administer compensation clawback provisions;

Oversee and monitor all perquisites provided to officers;

Review and approve the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Compensation Committee Report included in this Proxy Statement; and

Review and evaluate any stockholder votes relating to a proposal that seeks approval of the Company s executive compensation.

Compensation Committee Procedures

The Compensation Committee directs management to prepare financial data used by the Compensation Committee in determining executive compensation. In addition, members of the Company s human resources department assist in the preparation of executive compensation tally sheets and historical information on compensation paid to executives. The Compensation Committee is presented with recommendations from management and from the Committee s independent compensation consultant as to the level and type of compensation to provide to elected officers. Members of the Company s legal department provide the Compensation Committee with general advice on laws applicable to executive compensation and the directors fiduciary duties in setting compensation. The Compensation Committee may delegate any of its responsibilities to a sub-committee, so long as all of the members of the sub-committee meet the qualifications for membership on the Compensation Committee.

The Chief Executive Officer regularly attends meetings of the Compensation Committee. The Chief Executive Officer s feedback about each officer s performance is essential in the Compensation Committee s determination of the officer s salary and target incentive compensation determinations. Under no circumstances does the Chief Executive Officer participate in the Compensation Committee s review and establishment of Chief Executive Officer compensation, nor does the Chief Executive Officer participate in the Board s review of the Chief Executive Officer s performance. See pages 26 to 30 of this Proxy Statement for more information about how the Compensation Committee determines the executive officers compensation.

Compensation Committee Consultant

The Compensation Committee is empowered to engage the services of an outside compensation consultant without the involvement of Company management. In 2012, Meridian served as the Compensation Committee s outside compensation consultant. Meridian was retained by, and reported directly to, the Compensation Committee during its engagement as compensation consultant. As outside compensation consultant, Meridian provided the following services and information to the Compensation Committee:

Made recommendations regarding executive compensation (including the amount and form of compensation) consistent with the Company s business needs, pay philosophy, market trends and latest legal and regulatory considerations;

16

Table of Contents

Provided market data (including compiling the peer group and related performance data) as background for decisions regarding Chief Executive Officer and senior management compensation;

Advised the Compensation Committee as to best practices for structuring executive pay arrangements; and

Attended meetings as requested and summarized alternatives for compensation arrangements that may have been considered in formulating final recommendations, as well as the consultant s rationale for supporting or opposing management s proposals.

Meridian does not provide any other services to the Company or to management directly and accordingly its work on behalf of the Committee has not presented any conflict of interest. Pursuant to its terms of engagement, and to assure the ongoing independent status of Meridian as the Compensation Committee s independent compensation consultant, Meridian is prohibited from providing other services to the Company or its management, although Meridian may accept engagements from other committees of the Board.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No person who served as a member of our Board s Compensation Committee during the last fiscal year has (i) served as one of our officers or employees; or (ii) any relationship requiring disclosure under Item 404 of the SEC s Regulation S-K. None of our executive officers serve as a member of the board of directors or as a member of a compensation committee of any other company that has an executive officer serving as a member of our Company s Board or our Company s Compensation Committee.

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Responsibility Committee held five meetings in 2012. The Corporate Responsibility Committee s primary functions are to review and recommend to the Board policies on the Company s responsibilities to its employees and the community. The Committee meets periodically with the Company s personnel to review and discuss programs, policies and performance in the areas of:

Alcohol responsibility, alcohol education, and marketing initiatives;

Employee health and safety;

Diversity and equal employment opportunity;

Global citizenship;

Sustainability and the effect of Company operations on the environment; and

Philanthropic activities.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee held two meetings in 2012. The Executive Committee has all the authority of the full Board, except for specific powers that are required by law to be exercised by the full Board. The Executive Committee may not amend the Certificate of Incorporation, adopt an agreement of merger, recommend actions for

17

stockholder approval, amend the By-laws, elect, appoint or remove an officer or director, amend or repeal any resolutions of the Board, fix the Board s compensation, and unless expressly authorized by the Board, declare a dividend, authorize the issuance of stock or adopt a certificate of ownership and merger.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating Committee met five times in 2012 and each Nominating Committee member has been determined by our Board to be independent as such term is defined in the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual. The Nominating Committee s primary functions are to:

Identify, recruit and screen potential director nominees and recommend such nominees for election as members of the Board;

Review criteria and policies relating to director independence, service and tenure;

Recommend directors for membership on the Audit, Compensation, Corporate Responsibility, Executive and Nominating Committees, including their Chairs;

Recommend directors, secretaries and employees for membership on other committees established by the Board;

Recommend compensation arrangements (including the level and composition of such compensation) for non-employee directors;

Develop and recommend a set of corporate governance principles designed to foster an effective corporate governance environment;

Administer non-employee director equity compensation plans;

Review the charters of Board committees; and

Manage the performance review process of the Board, its committees and the Chief Executive Officer.

Director Nomination Process

The Nominating Committee is responsible for, among other things, screening potential director candidates and recommending qualified candidates to the Board for nomination.

When identifying and evaluating candidates, the Nominating Committee first determines whether there are any evolving needs of the Board that require an expert in a particular field. The Nominating Committee may retain a third-party search firm to assist the Committee in identifying qualified candidates that meet the needs of the Board at that time. A search firm provides information on candidates, which the Nominating Committee will discuss. The Nominating Committee Chair and some or all of the members of the Nominating Committee and the Chief Executive Officer will interview potential candidates that the Nominating Committee deems appropriate. If the Nominating Committee determines that a potential candidate meets the needs of the Board and has the appropriate qualifications, it will recommend the nomination of the candidate to the

18

Table of Contents

Board. During 2012, following the resignation of Pierre Leroy and retirement of Anne Tatlock, we retained Spencer Stuart, a third-party search firm, to conduct a search for new members of the Board. Spencer Stuart reviewed the qualifications of the candidates, including candidates referred to them by members of the Board, and recommended candidates to the Nominating Committee. Following candidate interviews, Gretchen Price, a candidate that had been recommended by Spencer Stuart, was nominated by the Nominating Committee. Based on the Nominating Committee s recommendation, the Board unanimously elected Gretchen Price to the Board effective July 23, 2012.

It is the Nominating Committee s policy to consider director candidates recommended by stockholders, if such recommendations are properly submitted to the Company. Stockholders wishing to recommend persons for consideration by the Nominating Committee as nominees for election to the Board can do so by writing to the Secretary of Beam Inc. at 510 Lake Cook Road, Deerfield, Illinois 60015. Recommendations must include the proposed nominee s name, biographical data and qualifications, as well as a written statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be named and, if nominated and elected, to serve as a director. Recommendations must also follow the Company s procedures for nomination of directors by stockholders (see page 60 of this Proxy Statement) as provided in our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws. The Nominating Committee will consider the candidate and the candidate s qualifications in the same manner in which it evaluates nominees identified by the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee may contact the stockholder making the nomination to discuss the qualifications of the candidate and the stockholder s reasons for making the nomination. The Nominating Committee may then interview the candidate if it deems the candidate to be appropriate. The Nominating Committee may use the services of a third-party search firm to provide additional information about the candidate prior to making a recommendation to the Board.

The Nominating Committee s nomination process is designed to ensure that the Nominating Committee fulfills its responsibility to recommend candidates that are properly qualified to serve the Company for the benefit of all of its stockholders, consistent with the standards established by the Nominating Committee under the Company s Corporate Governance Principles.

Other Corporate Governance Resources

The charter of each committee (other than the Executive Committee, which does not have a charter), the Company s Corporate Governance Principles, the Company s Code of Conduct and Ethics, which applies to all of our employees, directors and officers, and the Company s Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior Financial Officers are available on the Company s website (http://investor.beamglobal.com) under the tabs Corporate Governance Committees of the Board and Corporate Governance Company Policies.

19

Director Compensation

The following table sets forth information regarding 2012 compensation for each of our non-employee directors.

Name*	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)(1)	All Other Compensation (\$)(2)	Total (\$)
Richard A. Goldstein	102,500	115,009		217,509
Stephen W. Golsby	87,500	160,703		248,203
Ann F. Hackett	97,803	115,009		212,812
Pierre E. Leroy(3)	23,750			23,750
A. D. David Mackay	302,500	115,009		417,509
Gretchen W. Price(4)	38,519	86,278		124,797
Robert A. Steele	87,500	160,703		248,203
Anne M. Tatlock(5)	32,102		80,000(6)	112,102
Peter M. Wilson(7)	102,500	115,009		217,509

^{*} Although Matthew Shattock serves as a member of the Board, he does not receive any additional compensation for such service.

The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation (FASB ASC Topic 718). Except for Ms. Hackett and directors not elected at the 2012 Annual Meeting, each director received on the date of the 2012 Annual Meeting a grant of shares having a grant date fair value of \$56.02 per share. Ann Hackett elected to defer receipt of these shares until the January following the calendar year in which she no longer serves as a director of the Company.

On October 4, 2012, Robert Steele, Stephen Golsby and Gretchen Price each received a grant of shares having a grant date fair value of \$59.42 per share. These grants were awarded on a pro rata basis to represent each director s partial year of service on the Board.

See Certain Information Regarding Security Holdings on pages 58 and 59 of this Proxy Statement for the number of shares of stock held by each current director as of the record date, February 22, 2013.

- (2) The aggregate amount of perquisites and personal benefits given to each director valued on the basis of aggregate incremental cost to the Company was less than \$10,000 and, accordingly, is not reported in this column.
- (3) Pierre Leroy resigned from the Board effective February 22, 2012.
- (4) Gretchen Price joined the Board effective July 23, 2012.
- (5) Anne Tatlock retired from the Board effective April 24, 2012.
- As a non-employee director elected to the Board prior to April 30, 1997, Anne Tatlock was eligible to receive, upon retirement from the Board, a retirement benefit equal to the annual director s fee in effect at the time of her retirement. Anne Tatlock elected to receive this benefit in lieu of the annual stock option grant that otherwise would have been made to her for services rendered between 1996 and 1997. Directors elected after April 30, 1997 are not eligible for this benefit. No additional years of service are being accrued under the program. The aggregate amount of all perquisites and personal benefits given to Anne Tatlock was less than \$10,000 and, accordingly, is not reported in this column.

(7) As of December 31, 2012, Peter Wilson held options exercisable for 4,980 shares of common stock, issued under the 2002 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan. The plan expired on December 31, 2006, and stock options have not been granted to non-employee directors since 2005.

The annual cash fee for services as a non-employee director of the Company was \$80,000 during 2012. Members of the Audit Committee and the Compensation and Benefits Committee received an additional \$7,500 for their service on these committees. The Company s non-executive Chairman receives an additional annual cash fee of \$200,000. The Chair of each of the Audit, Compensation and Benefits, Corporate Responsibility and Nominating Committees received an additional cash fee of \$15,000 for such service. All director fees were pro-rated during 2012 for the portion of the year in which each director served on the Board or its respective committees.

20

Table of Contents

Each non-employee director receives an annual stock grant under the 2010 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan that is based on a set dollar value. The number of shares granted is determined by dividing the set dollar value by the closing price of the Company s common stock on the grant date. In April 2012, the Nominating Committee set the dollar value at \$115,000, with each non-employee director other than Ann Hackett and the directors not elected at the 2012 Annual Meeting receiving 2,053 shares of our common stock (Ann Hackett deferred receipt of these shares until the January following the calendar year in which she no longer serves as a director of the Company).

In October 2012, the Nominating Committee adopted a policy of providing pro rata equity awards to newly-elected directors and determined to apply the policy to those directors who joined the Board during the preceding 12 months. Accordingly, Stephen Golsby and Robert Steele, who were elected to the Board on December 1, 2011, each received a prorated additional annual stock grant having a grant date dollar value of \$45,712 (or 769 shares of our common stock) for their service from December 1, 2011 through the date of the 2012 Annual Meeting. Gretchen Price, who was elected to the Board on July 23, 2012, received a prorated annual stock grant having a grant date dollar value of \$86,250 (or 1,452 shares of our common stock) for her service during 2012.

Stock Ownership of Board Members

In order to more directly align the Board s interests with those of stockholders, the Company expects directors to establish and maintain a significant level of stock ownership. Stock ownership guidelines have been established for directors. The guideline for directors is three times their annual cash fee. The guidelines allow directors five years from the date of the director s election to the Board to meet the guidelines. All of the directors who have been on the Board at least five years satisfy the guidelines. For information on the beneficial ownership of securities of the Company by directors and executive officers see Certain Information Regarding Security Holdings on pages 58 and 59.

21

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) describes our executive pay philosophy, the process we use to establish executive pay and the pay program applicable to our named executive officers (NEOs) during 2012. The Compensation Committee administers our executive pay program. This CD&A provides information regarding the compensation and benefits provided to the following NEOs:

Matthew J. Shattock President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO);

Robert F. Probst Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (CFO);

William A. Newlands Senior Vice President and President, North America;

Philip Baldock Senior Vice President and President, Asia-Pacific/South America; and

Albert Baladi Senior Vice President and President, Europe/Middle East/Africa.

Business Highlights

2012 was a year of great progress and excellent results for Beam. Having successfully completed the spin-off of the Fortune Brands Home & Security (Home & Security) business in October of 2011, Beam exceeded its performance goals in its first full year as a focused spirits company and continued to create substantial value for stockholders.

The Company has long believed in a pay-for-performance approach to compensation. The Company s financial results, performance against targets, and achievement of strategic goals were critical factors in determining compensation paid to our NEOs in 2012. Beam evaluates overall Company performance and geographic performance for the following segments: North America; Asia Pacific and South America (APSA); and Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA).

Beam continued to deliver excellent results in its first full year as a focused pure-play spirits company by executing its disciplined growth strategy that relies on Creating Famous Brands, Building Winning Markets, and Fueling Our Growth. This strategy helped deliver results that achieved or exceeded the Company s long-term growth model to outperform our global market, grow operating income faster than sales, and grow diluted earnings per share before charges/gains even faster, at a high single-digit rate.

Beam continued to outperform at the top line with comparable net sales in 2012 that increased 6% from 2011 to a record \$2.5 billion.*

Successful brand-building, innovation and improved price/mix helped drive strong growth for our priority brands. Comparable sales for Beam s global Power Brands grew 10% from 2011 and the Rising Star brands also grew 10% from 2011.*

* Reconciliations of non-GAAP measures to the most closely comparable GAAP measures are presented in Appendix A to this Proxy Statement.

22

Table of Contents

Another record year of innovations enhanced the Company s core brand equities, attracted new consumers to our brands and categories, and contributed to improved product mix and broad market share gains.

Sales growth was broad-based, with strong increases across all three segments. On a comparable basis, net sales increased 7% in North America, 5% in EMEA and 5% in APSA, each as compared to 2011.*

Operating income before charges/gains increased 10%* from 2011 as premium innovations and higher pricing improved margins.

Beam delivered double-digit growth in earnings per share from continuing operations before charges/gains, exceeding the Company s long-term target of high single-digit growth. Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations before charges/gains increased 13% from 2011 to \$2.40.* On a GAAP basis, diluted earnings per share from continuing operations increased to \$2.48 from \$0.85 in 2011.

The Company continued its strong stewardship of capital and maintained a strong balance sheet. We generated free cash flow of \$337 million* and an earnings-to-free-cash conversion rate of 87%*, even while making significant investments to support future growth. We increased the dividend 8% in 2012 (and 10% in January 2013). We completed two acquisitions in fast-growing categories, and the Company s year-end net-debt-to-EBITDA ratio was better than expected at 2.8 times.*

Return on invested capital in 2012 was 7% and was 23% excluding intangibles.*

Beam common stock, including dividends, returned 21% from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

The Company achieved its strong results while making significant investments that we believe will strengthen Beam s competitive position and long-term growth in several critical areas.

We supported our broad portfolio of premium brands with a third consecutive year of double-digit increased investment. We further strengthened our core equities with impactful brand communication on television, in digital media and at the point of purchase, and we accelerated our growth with innovative new products while also opening our new Global Innovation Center.

We continued to strengthen our premium portfolio by adding a Power Brand Pinnacle Vodka in the largest premium spirits category, and entering the fast-growing Irish Whiskey category with the purchase of Cooley Distillery, including its flagship Kilbeggan brand.

To support the sustained future growth of brands particularly aged spirits we made significant investments in our capacity and capability, including accelerating investment to lay down more Bourbon, Scotch and Cognac and increase distillation capacity.

* Reconciliations of non-GAAP measures to the most closely comparable GAAP measures are presented in Appendix A to this Proxy Statement.

23

We strengthened our long-term competitive position in priority markets. Successful innovations, brand-building and in-market activation helped deliver another year of outperformance that strengthened Beam s #2 position in the U.S. (the world s #1 premium spirits market) solid performance in Australia (the world s #2 bourbon market) and double-digit growth in Germany (the world s #3 bourbon market). Emerging markets generated double-digit sales growth, as our investments in new or enhanced route-to-market partnerships helped drive success in markets including China, Mexico, Brazil, Russia and Eastern Europe.

We believe Beam entered 2013 well positioned to deliver sustainable, profitable long-term growth.

Pay-for-Performance in 2012

The Compensation Committee and the Company strive to create a pay-for-performance culture. The compensation actions for 2012 reflected the Company s commitment to this performance-based culture, as described below:

On average, more than 60% of each NEO s target total compensation is at risk, and over 80% of the CEO s target total compensation is at risk.

Each NEO participated in the Beam Executive Incentive Plan, which annually awards incentive compensation based on pre-established performance goals relating to net sales, operating income and free cash flow.

Each NEO received 2012 long-term incentive grants of a combination of the following: performance share awards, stock options and restricted stock units.

Corporate Governance Practices Reflected in Our Approach to Executive Pay

To assure that our executive pay practices emphasize and drive our business model, align executive interests with those of stockholders and appropriately balance governance, oversight and risk management, our Compensation Committee, composed entirely of independent directors has adopted the following corporate governance practices that are supportive of our executive compensation objectives and philosophies:

We are mindful of risks to the Company that could be posed by our compensation policies and practices and design our compensation policies and practices to minimize such risks.

We expect our executives to maintain significant ownership in the Company as reflected in our Stock Ownership Guidelines which serve to align the interests of executives with those of stockholders.

Executives are prohibited from hedging their exposure to ownership of, or interest in, Company stock.

Executives are not allowed to pledge their shares of Company stock to secure a debt or to affect a hedge.

24

Table of Contents

Our long-term equity incentives vest over a period of three years to assure that our executives maintain a long-term goal to create stockholder value, and the Compensation Committee eliminated long-term cash awards under the Company s Long-Term Incentive Plan in favor of a mix of equity-based awards.

Our clawback policy permits the Compensation Committee to recover incentive payments that would not have otherwise been earned due to certain financial restatements.

Our change in control agreements with executives:

Do not contain tax gross-ups ;

Contain double triggers requiring both a change in control and termination of employment before most equity is accelerated; and

Provide market-competitive severance benefits.

We continuously monitor evolving governance practices in this area, and their application to our executive pay programs, and adjust our governance and pay practices as appropriate. Creating a performance-based and compliant culture at Beam is important to our success as a responsible steward of stockholder investment.

25

COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY

Objectives

The Compensation Committee has established the following objectives that apply to the Company s executive pay program:

Objective

Align the interests of management with those of the Company s stockholders

Maintain a total rewards strategy that supports the Company s overall business strategy

Reinforce the pay-for-performance culture at the Company

Attract, retain and motivate superior executive talent through competitive salary and total compensation

Provide incentive compensation that promotes desired behavior without encouraging excessive risk

Rationale

To assure that management takes both an immediate and long-term approach to the Company, the equity program is aligned with the Company s long-term performance goals, which the Compensation Committee believes align the interests of executives with those of stockholders. The Company s Stock Ownership Guidelines also reinforce the alignment of executive interests with those of the Company and its stockholders.

The Company s total rewards strategy encourages and rewards a cooperative approach to developing innovative business solutions, while aligning employee behavior with the Company s priorities and values.

Pay-for-performance is a key principle in our compensation philosophy; it is not only important that NEOs and key executives exemplify the pay-for-performance culture, but that their actions, both individually and collectively, as key business drivers, are reinforced through the attainment of positive business outcomes.

Key to the Company s continued success is the ability to outperform competitors in all areas. To do so, the Company holds as a core value the need to regularly evaluate, improve and innovate. Therefore, the Company s ability to continuously attract and retain key talent is critical to the Company s goal of continued outperformance. While the Company recognizes the importance of sustained excellence in performance, we neither encourage nor tolerate behavior that results in excessive risk to the Company. Our plans and programs are designed to encourage innovation and entrepreneurial thinking and behavior in a manner that does not put the Company at unnecessary risk.

26

Principles

The Compensation Committee has further developed the following principles that it believes support the objectives outlined above:

Principle

An independent compensation committee should establish and review total executive pay

Compensation should be competitive with our peers, and allow flexibility to attract key personnel while reflecting the global nature of our workforce

Incentive compensation should align with and help reinforce business strategy and objectives and the Company s desired culture, and incent desired behavior

A significant portion of executive pay should be equity-based

Share ownership guidelines should be followed

Rationale

Our pay-for-performance culture requires ongoing measurement of business and individual performance against goals. Therefore, it is important to assure through independent assessment that executive pay plans and arrangements align individual and Company performance with the stated objectives of the Company.

To attract the highest caliber talent, it is important that we provide a total compensation package that not only allows the Company to maintain its current workforce, but also attract and retain other key personnel, particularly in market segments that create the most value.

A key component in our pay-for-performance culture is incentive compensation. Short-term and long-term incentive compensation directly connects individual compensation with the attainment of the Company s financial and strategic goals, including sales, operating income, earnings per share performance and attainment of specified outcomes.

To increase the executives focus on the Company s long-term performance, align their interests with those of our stockholders and create an ownership culture, it is important that a significant portion of executive pay be in the form of equity-based compensation.

To foster an ownership mentality and, specifically, to further align the economic interests of key executives with those of our stockholders, it is important that such executives hold a meaningful level of the Company s stock throughout their tenure with the Company.

27

PROCESS FOR ESTABLISHING EXECUTIVE PAY

Roles in the Executive Pay Process

Beam maintains a rigorous executive pay process. The following identifies the various parties that participated in the Company s 2012 executive pay review and approval process and describes the role of each party in the process.

Board of Directors

The Board annually reviews the CEO s performance with respect to specified performance goals established by the Compensation Committee and consults with the Compensation Committee upon request with respect to CEO compensation.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee establishes target compensation and goals for the CEO in consultation with independent members of the Board and reports CEO compensation to the Board in executive session.

The Compensation Committee works with the CEO and reviews his evaluation of the performance of his direct reports as well as the performance evaluation for other executive officers. It approves compensation actions for such officers (with the input of the CEO) and administers employee compensation and benefit programs delegated to the Compensation Committee as reflected in its charter, including approval of performance goals under incentive plans and annual equity program design and grants.

When establishing executive pay, the Compensation Committee reviews tally sheets that include data on individual items of compensation and each executive s current and historical total compensation package. The review considers compensation currently payable, as well as contingent compensation, including incentive compensation and compensation payable only if certain circumstances occur, such as involuntary termination of employment without cause or certain terminations of employment following a change in control.

CEO

The CEO evaluates each of his direct report sperformance and reports to the Compensation Committee on the performance of each direct report and each executive officer. He also recommends performance metrics to the Compensation Committee for each direct report with respect to performance-based compensation and recommends compensation actions to the Compensation Committee with respect to the direct reports and other executive officers.

While the Compensation Committee and/or the Board may request that the CEO participate in meetings and provide information that it deems helpful in reviewing and establishing executive compensation, under no circumstances does the CEO participate in the Compensation Committee s review and establishment of CEO compensation nor does the CEO participate in the Board s review of the CEO s performance.

Independent Compensation Consultant

The Compensation Committee retains Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC (Meridian) as its independent compensation consultant. Meridian provides advice and recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding the amount and form of

28

executive pay. Meridian regularly communicated with the Compensation Committee during 2012 and participated in five Compensation Committee meetings during 2012. Meridian provides advice and guidance to the Compensation Committee, including market-competitive data that assists the committee in evaluating and establishing executive pay.

To assure Meridian s ongoing independence, Meridian is prohibited from providing other services to the Company or its management, although Meridian may accept engagements from other committees of the Board. The Compensation Committee assessed Meridian s independence against the six independence factors adopted by the SEC, including whether Meridian had any actual or potential conflicts of interest. In addition, the Compensation Committee reviewed Meridian s terms of engagement and its compensation and performance during 2012 and determined that Meridian had no relationship with any of the Company s executive officers. Based on this review and assessment, the Compensation Committee concluded that Meridian was and continues to remain independent.

Peer Group Companies

The Compensation Committee, with Meridian s advice and assistance, reviews current compensation against compensation of similarly situated public companies and direct competitors (the Peer Group). The Compensation Committee works with Meridian to review the Company s Peer Group selection criteria and ultimately the Peer Group selected. The Compensation Committee, considering the advice of Meridian, regularly reviews the Peer Group to assure that the Peer Group reflects what the Compensation Committee believes to be an accurate representation of market comparators. The Compensation Committee and Meridian consider revenue, market capitalization, relative performance, industry, market segment, international sales, competitors for executive talent and whether the company is a direct competitor of the Company, among other factors, when reviewing and establishing the Peer Group. After careful review and consideration, the Compensation Committee provides final approval of the Peer Group.

The following is the Peer Group used by the Company to establish compensation for executives for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012:

Brown-Forman Corporation
Campbell Soup Co.
Constellation Brands, Inc.
Dean Foods Co.
Del Monte Foods Co.
Diageo plc
Dr. Pepper Snapple Group Inc.
Flowers Foods, Inc.
Green Mountain Coffee Roasters Inc.
H.J. Heinz Co.

The Hershey Co.
Hormel Foods Co.
Lorillard Co.
McCormick & Co. Inc.
Molson Coors Brewing Co.
Monster Beverage Corp. (formerly Hansen Natural Corp.)
Ralcorp Holdings Inc.
Reynolds America Inc.
The J.M. Smucker Co.

Benchmarking

The Compensation Committee annually reviews the compensation provided to NEOs and other key executives, benchmarking individual executive pay and the overall executive pay programs against the Peer Group.

Table of Contents

The Compensation Committee targets total compensation around the 50th percentile of Peer Group compensation, based on size-adjusted market data. While the Compensation Committee generally aims to provide compensation within the targeted range, factors unique to a particular executive, including his or her employment situation or special skills, experience and performance may affect the executive s base salary and total compensation either positively or negatively compared to the targeted range. The Compensation Committee considers the following factors when establishing an executive s compensation in addition to market data:

Role and responsibilities within the Company;
Experience and value to the Company;
Individual performance;
Tenure with the Company; and
Ability of the Company to replicate the executive s knowledge, skills and abilities.

The total target compensation (i.e., the sum of base salary, target annual incentive opportunity and target long-term incentive opportunity) for the NEOs other than Mr. Baldock was around the 50th percentile of market comparability data.

Mr. Baldock s total target compensation was at the third quartile of market comparability data. The Compensation Committee reviewed Mr. Baldock s total target compensation, recognizing that it fell outside the Company s target range, and determined the compensation to be appropriate. In approving Mr. Baldock s compensation package, the Compensation Committee took into account his record of success and regional market data.

Stockholder Input

The Compensation Committee also seeks to assure that the Company s executive pay program is aligned with the interests of its stockholders. In that respect, as part of its ongoing review of the Company s executive pay program, the Compensation Committee considered the approval by more than 87% of the votes cast for the Say on Pay vote at the Company s 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and determined that the Company s executive pay philosophy, compensation objectives, and compensation elements continued to be appropriate and did not make any changes to the Company s executive pay program in response to such stockholder vote.

30

ELEMENTS OF NEO PAY

NEOs of the Company are eligible for various types of compensation including base salary, annual and long-term incentive compensation and retirement and severance benefits. Included below are charts depicting the relative weighting of 2012 base salary and target annual and long-term incentives for NEOs.

Base Salary

The Company provides a market competitive base salary to its NEOs to attract and retain quality talent. Each NEO s base salary recognizes level of responsibility, experience, individual performance and tenure. The Compensation Committee may adjust base salaries from the targeted percentile to reflect a particular NEO s unique skill set, experience, performance, and expertise. In 2012, base salaries for NEOs other than Mr. Baldock were increased nominally as reflected in the chart below. The base salaries for the NEOs as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

NEO	Base Salary 12/31/12	Base Salary 12/31/11	Percent Increase
Matthew J. Shattock	\$1,000,000	\$950,000	5.26%
Robert F. Probst	\$561,000	\$550,000	2.00%
William A. Newlands	\$561,000	\$550,000	2.00%
Philip Baldock	AUD\$678,000	AUD\$678,000	0.00%
	$(USD\$704,713)^{1}$	(USD\$692,170) ¹	
Albert Baladi	EUR\$386,250	EUR\$375,000	3.00%
	$(USD\$509,580)^2$	$(USD\$485,700)^2$	

Based on a conversion rate of AUD to USD of 1 to 1.0394 on December 31, 2012 and AUD to USD of 1 to 1.0209 on December 31, 2011.

31

² Based on a conversion rate of EUR to USD of 1 to 1.3193 on December 31, 2012 and EUR to USD of 1 to 1.2952 on December 31, 2011.

Annual Incentive Compensation

Each NEO participated in the Beam Executive Incentive Plan (the EIP) in 2012. The Company provides awards to NEOs under the EIP to align each NEO s performance with the short-term goals of the Company, as measured by sales, operating income and Company free cash flow performance. The Compensation Committee established targets and executive awards under the EIP based on a combination of performance metrics. For Messrs. Shattock and Probst, the Compensation Committee established goals under a Company net sales/operating income matrix and based on Company free cash flow. For Messrs. Newlands, Baldock and Baladi, the Compensation Committee established targets under the same metrics applicable to Messrs. Shattock and Probst, plus a regional matrix. The metrics applicable to each executive were evaluated and approved by the Compensation Committee to align the compensation of each executive with Company-wide and/or business segment performance, depending on the executive s role within the Company. The operating income metrics in the respective matrices are on a before charges/gains basis.

Executive awards under the EIP are subject to discretionary adjustment by the Compensation Committee based its evaluation of individual performance and execution against individually established performance goals as well as overall contributions to the performance of the Company. In making any such discretionary adjustments, the Compensation Committee takes into consideration performance against specific goals, outstanding performance in a particular region, entrepreneurial and outstanding achievement, innovation, outstanding and forward thinking leadership, establishment of new relationships and product lines, and other individual efforts that exceed expectations or the executive s scope of duties and drive the Company s success. The Committee may also adjust awards to account for unusual or unexpected events, the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, and non-recurring items.

The EIP performance goals for 2012 are set forth in the following table:

NEO 2012 Metrics
Matthew J. Shattock 80% Beam Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam Free Cash Flow

Robert F. Probst 80% Beam Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam Free Cash Flow

William A. Newlands 60% Segment Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam

Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam Free Cash Flow

Philip Baldock 60% Segment Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam

Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam Free Cash Flow

Albert Baladi 60% Segment Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam

Sales/Operating Income Matrix; 20% Beam Free Cash Flow

A particular performance matrix is built around targets for sales and operating income performance for the Company or particular business segment, which produces an operating income margin focus. The Company or business segment must achieve at least the minimum operating income growth threshold in order to receive a payout. The Company or business segment also must achieve at least the minimum sales growth threshold to receive a payout. For 2012, the threshold and maximum award opportunities were 20% and 200% of target, respectively.

32

The 2012 matrix for Company performance was as follows:

The Compensation Committee determined each applicable matrix to be appropriate because at the time of grant, target performance goals were believed to be challenging but achievable through sound management and execution against overall Company and business segment strategy. Award levels at the higher levels of performance under each matrix were established as stretch goals for the Company or business segment and the leadership team.

Individual award targets were established as a percentage of each NEO s base salary under the EIP. Targets were developed based on each NEO s role within the organization and the assessment of the NEO s total compensation relative to market. The EIP targets for the NEOs were as follows as of December 31, 2012:

Target

Annual Incentive

NEO	Target
Matthew J. Shattock	125%
Robert F. Probst	75%
William A. Newlands	80%
Philip Baldock	55%
Albert Baladi	55%

For 2012, the Compensation Committee set Company net sales and operating income before charges/gains targets of \$2.38 billion and \$609.4 million*, respectively, and a free cash flow target of \$290.7 million*. The Compensation Committee set segment net sales and operating income before charges/gains targets** as follows: North America \$1.35 billion and \$384 million, respectively, EMEA \$529 million and \$128 million, respectively, and APSA \$508 million and \$97 million, respectively.

The Company reported net sales of \$2.466 billion and operating income before charges/gains of \$631.9 million.* As permitted under the terms of the EIP, the Committee adjusted the matrix calculations to reflect the Pinnacle acquisition commitment case and to account for the impact of foreign exchange rates, fluctuations in commodity prices and other costs that the Committee deemed were not indicative of the Company s underlying performance for 2012. The net result of such adjustments was a decrease in the payout made to each participating employee in the EIP.

- * Reconciliations of non-GAAP measures to the most closely comparable GAAP measures are presented in Appendix A to this Proxy Statement.
- ** For a description of the methodology used to determine operating income before charges/gain, please see Appendix A Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures.

For 2012, adjusted performance exceeded targeted goals as measured by each performance matrix and Company free cash flow. In 2012, adjusted performance on the Company sales/operating income matrix was 136% of target and on each of the segment sales/operating income matrices was: North America 175% of target, APSA 133% of target and EMEA 200% of target. Company free cash flow was at 146% of target.

Based on its evaluation of the applicable performance matrices, the Compensation Committee subsequently approved the awards to be received by each NEO as follows:

NEO	Target Award	Maximum Award	Actual Award
Matthew J. Shattock	\$ 1,250,000	\$ 2,500,000	\$ 1,725,000
Robert F. Probst	\$ 420,750	\$ 841,500	\$ 580,635
William A. Newlands	\$ 448,800	\$ 897,600	\$ 722,568
Philip Baldock	\$ 387,592	\$ 775,184	\$ 527,125
Albert Baladi	\$ 280,269	\$ 560,538	\$ 493,273

Long-Term Performance Incentives

Overview

In 2011, Company stockholders approved the Beam Inc. 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). The Company designed the LTIP to allow for flexibility in rewarding the attainment of Company goals, while also assuring the alignment of NEO interests with those of stockholders, and particularly the long-term profitability of the Company and the performance of Company stock. The LTIP also plays an important role in promoting an ownership culture among the employees of the Company while supporting the overall goal of a pay-for-performance culture. Under the LTIP, the Compensation Committee has the authority to grant performance shares, stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and cash-based incentive awards.

Each NEO is granted awards under the LTIP with an aggregate target value approximately equal to market median. In 2012, the Company changed the mix of LTIP awards for its executives, including the NEOs, to eliminate cash-settled performance awards as a form of award and to shift an increasing percentage of each executive s awards to stock based compensation. The Committee felt that this change would further align the interests of each executive with those of stockholders. Mr. Shattock s 2012 awards were allocated as follows: 50% performance shares, 25% stock options and 25% restricted stock units. The remaining NEOs were allocated 2012 awards as follows: 40% performance shares, 30% stock options and 30% restricted stock units.

The following table summarizes the types of long-term incentive awards granted to the NEOs during 2012 and the rationale for providing each form of award:

Award Rationale

Performance Shares Creates pay-for-performance culture; ties magnitude of award (if any) to performance; allows tailoring of performance criteria; creates retention

mechanism with vesting schedule

Stock Options

Restricted Stock Units

Creates long-term ownership culture; aligns interests of executives with those of stockholders; creates retention mechanism with vesting schedule Emphasizes retention; market competitive practice; creates stock ownership culture when settled in Company stock

34

Performance Share Awards

Performance shares are awarded based on achievement of return on invested capital (ROIC) and cumulative earnings per share (EPS) targets over a three-year performance period. These two measures were selected because the Compensation Committee believes that they drive long-term stockholder value creation by capturing growth through the EPS measure and returns through the ROIC measure. The Company grants performance share awards with payout determined following the end of a three-year performance period. At the completion of the three-year performance period, overall performance is evaluated and awards are determined based on performance against stated targets.

On October 4, 2011, the Company completed the spin-off of Home & Security by distributing 100% of the outstanding shares of Home & Security common stock to holders of the Company s common stock (the Spin-Off). As a result of the Spin-Off, Home & Security became an independent public company. Due to the Spin-Off, no performance shares were awarded for the 2011-2013 performance period.

Performance share awards with respect to the 2010-2012 performance period, which were outstanding at the time of the Spin-Off, were converted to restricted stock units (RSUs). Therefore, no performance shares remain outstanding under the 2010-2012 performance period. The number of performance shares converted in each case was the sum of (a) the number of performance shares that would be awarded to the holder for the full performance period based on Company performance through the Spin-Off date, prorated to reflect the portion of the performance period that had elapsed as of the Spin-Off date; and (b) the number of performance shares that would be awarded to the holder for the full performance period assuming target performance, prorated to reflect the portion of the performance period between the Spin-Off date and the end of the performance period. The converted RSUs have a vesting period equal to the duration of the original performance period.

Stock Options

In February 2012, the Compensation Committee granted stock options to each of the NEOs. The exercise price of the options was established as the closing price of Company common stock on the date of grant. The number of stock options granted to each NEO in 2012 is listed in the table on page 42 of this Proxy Statement. Stock options are provided to executives to align the interests of executives with those of stockholders. Stock options foster a long-term ownership culture and also create a retention mechanism by virtue of their multi-year vesting schedule and long-term potential value.

Restricted Stock Units

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) are time-vested grants that award shares of common stock to executives who satisfy the applicable vesting period. Each RSU is settled in one share of Company common stock. It is a market-competitive practice in the Company's Peer Group to issue RSUs, and the Compensation Committee believes that RSUs provide stability to the Company's executive workforce by providing an incentive to the executive to remain employed with the Company. The Compensation Committee believes that RSUs also encourage long-tem value creation and align NEO financial interests with those of stockholders.

The Compensation Committee approved the award of RSUs to Messrs. Shattock, Probst, Newlands, Baldock and Baladi at its February 2012 meeting. The number of RSUs awarded to each NEO was determined based on the closing price of Company common stock on the date of grant. The RSUs cliff vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant and are also subject to a performance metric specifically designed to qualify the awards for the performance-based exemption under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. The number of RSUs granted to each NEO in 2012 is listed in the table on page 42 of this Proxy Statement.

Cash-Settled Performance Awards

Cash-Settled performance awards were historically provided at the business segment level, and were introduced to reward intermediate and long-term performance goals specific to the operating company. The Company evaluated its practice of providing cash-settled performance awards in 2011, and determined to discontinue this practice for grants occurring in 2012 and thereafter. At that time, the Company determined that long-term awards were more appropriately linked to the Company s equity as opposed to cash payment, particularly since awards under the EIP are also paid in cash. However, cash-settled performance awards remain outstanding under the 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 performance periods of the LTIP and will continue to be reported as earned and awarded during those performance periods.

For the 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 performance periods, the NEOs other than Messrs. Baldock and Baladi received cash-settled performance awards valued based on performance units with a target value of \$400 per unit. Performance is evaluated based 50% on operating income results and 50% on return on net tangible assets (RONTA) results. In Mr. Baldock is case, target cash-settled performance awards are valued as a percentage of base salary rather than as performance units. His cash-settled performance awards were targeted at 60% of base salary, and measured in the same equally weighted operating income and RONTA measures applicable to other NEOs. Goals for the 2010-2012 performance period were established at the beginning of each year in the performance period based on operating income and RONTA results. For the 2012 portion of the 2010-2012 performance period, operating income and RONTA results produced a result of 126% of target. Goals for the 2011-2013 performance period are based on operating income and RONTA for the full three-year performance period, as established at the start of the performance period. Based on Mr. Baladi is hire date, he was not eligible to receive a cash-settled performance award.

36

OTHER ELEMENTS OF NEO COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits

The Company believes that retirement benefits are an important element of its executive pay program. The Company feels that the retirement and deferred compensation benefits provide a market competitive level of income upon retirement. The Company provides retirement benefits to NEOs in the United States through a combination of a tax-qualified defined contribution plan and a nonqualified excess benefit plan, which includes a defined contribution component. The nonqualified plan allows participating executives to accrue benefits that are otherwise limited by the Internal Revenue Code under the Company s qualified defined contribution retirement plan. In 2012, the Company also established a voluntary deferral nonqualified deferred compensation plan for its eligible U.S. employees including members of senior management, effective as of January 1, 2013. The new plan allows participants to voluntarily defer receipt of a portion of their cash compensation. The Company provides retirement benefits to NEOs in Spain and Australia through locally maintained defined contribution plans.

Perquisites

The Company provides its NEOs with modest perquisites and other personal benefits which are consistent with market practice and the Compensation Committee s philosophy of attracting and retaining exemplary executive talent. The Compensation Committee periodically reviews the levels of perquisites and other personal benefits provided to NEOs to assure that such benefits are consistent with the Company s executive pay philosophy.

Change in Control and Severance Agreements

The Company maintains a severance and change in control agreement with each NEO. The Company maintains these agreements to assure the continuity of key management through the date of a potential change in control, and to allow management to focus on the potential events resulting in a change in control without concern for their continued employment. These agreements generally provide for severance pay in the event of involuntary termination of employment by the Company without cause or voluntary termination of employment by a NEO in the event of good reason. No severance is available if a NEO s employment is terminated due to death, disability or by the Company for cause.

Enhanced benefits are available to NEOs if their termination event occurs within a specified period following a change in control. The change in control severance pay is a double trigger severance benefit, meaning that both a change in control must occur, and the executive must either voluntarily terminate employment for good reason following the change in control, or be terminated by the Company or its successor without cause following the change in control. The agreements limit the ability of executives to work for competitors after their employment with the Company has ended. The Company entered into these agreements with the NEOs in 2011 based on a review of market practices and the advice of Meridian. In designing the agreements the Company specifically prohibited tax gross-ups. These agreements are described in more detail on pages 47 to 51 of this Proxy Statement.

Table of Contents 60

37

POLICIES, GUIDELINES AND DEDUCTIBILITY OF COMPENSATION

Clawback Policy

The Company s clawback policy empowers the Board to seek recoupment of incentive compensation paid to NEOs and other key employees in the event of a material restatement of the Company s financial statements (other than changes required to comply with changes to applicable accounting principles). The Compensation Committee regularly reviews the clawback policy to assure compliance with applicable laws, and the Compensation Committee will revise the policy as appropriate to assure compliance with applicable law. The clawback policy applies to the Company s annual incentive plan and long-term incentive plan.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

The following summarizes the current Stock Ownership Guidelines as approved by the Compensation Committee and in effect for NEOs:

Officer Level
Chief Executive Officer
Senior Vice Presidents (Region Presidents and CFO)

Ownership Requirements 6 times base salary 3 times base salary

The guidelines are intended to strongly encourage stock ownership and provide a minimum level of ownership for executives of the Company. The guidelines also prohibit directors, officers and certain subsidiary employees from hedging the risk of owning Company stock or from trading in derivatives of the Company stock. Each of the NEOs is on pace to satisfy the requirements of the guidelines within the five-year period outlined in the guidelines.

Deductibility of Certain Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code limits the income tax deduction that is available to public companies for compensation paid to each of the chief executive officer and the other three most highly compensated executive officers, other than the chief financial officer, unless the compensation qualifies as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m). The Company intends to avail itself of the exemption from Section 162(m) for performance-based compensation when practicable, but reserves the right to award compensation that may not be fully deductible if payment of such compensation is determined to be in the interests of the Company and its stockholders.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation and Benefits Committee (the Compensation Committee) has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management and, based on the review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 and the Company s Proxy Statement.

Compensation and Benefits Committee

Ann F. Hackett, Chair

Stephen W. Golsby

Peter M. Wilson

39

2012 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Summary Compensation Table below sets forth accounting values for both fixed and variable elements of compensation for the NEOs, including unvested and/or unpaid stock awards and unexercised stock options. For example, stock options granted to each of the NEOs during 2012 are presented in the Option Awards column of the table below based on the awards—grant date fair value as determined under applicable accounting rules. However, the amount each NEO realizes from these equity awards may differ materially from the amounts shown in the table below and the related footnotes (in certain circumstances, the NEOs may realize no value under these awards). Similarly, restricted stock unit (RSUs) awards and performance shares that have been granted to each of the NEOs during 2012 are presented in the Stock Awards column of the table below based on the awards—grant date fair value as determined under applicable accounting rules, even though the executive may later forfeit the award. Investors should note that equity compensation awards granted or paid to the NEOs are reported in several different tables in this Proxy Statement as required by the SEC—s executive compensation disclosure rules.

2012 Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position	Year A	Salary (\$)(1) B	Bonus (\$)(2) C	Stock Awards (\$)(3)(4) D	Option Awards (\$)(4)(5) E	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)(6) F	All Other Compensation (\$)(7) G	Total (\$) H
Matthew J. Shattock President & CEO	2012	991,667	0	3,000,038	999,998	2,748,167	259,111	7,998,980
	2011	851,250	0	4,659,073	4,206,388	2,037,875	222,289	11,976,875
Robert F. Probst	2012	558,250	0	769,978	329,998	648,102	139,526	2,445,855
SVP & Chief Financial Officer	2011	512,500		1,054,808	1,339,690	784,700	129,147	3,820,845
William A. Newlands	2012	558,250	0	769,978	329,998	790,035	150,993	2,559,254
SVP, President North America	2011	520,000	400,000	1,054,808	1,339,690	830,800	144,869	4,290,167
Philip A. Baldock	2012	704,713	0	524,977	224,998	684,282	57,167	2,196,137
SVP, President APSA	2011	692,170	0	790,988	1,089,697	1,012,031	56,446	3,641,332
Albert Baladi	2012	505,869	400,000	524,977	224,998	493,273	103,926	2,253,044
SVP, President EMEA	2011	404,750	400,000	790,988	1,000,147	302,900	498,946	3,397,731

- (1) Salary: The amounts listed in Column B reflect base salaries received by the NEOs. In the case of Messrs. Baldock and Baladi, base salary amounts have been converted to U.S. dollars from local currency based on the conversion rate in effect on December 31 of the reported year: AUD to USD of 1 to 1.0394 for Mr. Baldock and EUR to USD of 1 to 1.3193 for Mr. Baladi on December 31, 2012 and AUD to USD of 1 to 1.0209 for Mr. Baldock and EUR to USD of 1 to 1.2952 for Mr. Baladi on December 31, 2011.
- (2) **Bonus:** The amounts listed in Column C reflect a \$400,000 sign-on bonus paid to Mr. Baladi in each of 2011 and 2012 and a \$400,000 retention bonus paid to Mr. Newlands in 2011 pursuant to a 2009 retention agreement.
- Stock Awards: The amounts listed in Column D reflect the grant date fair values calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation (FASB ASC Topic 718) for RSUs and, with respect to 2012, performance shares awarded. The amounts for performance shares granted during 2012 are calculated based on the Company achieving a target level of performance, which is the probable satisfaction of the performance conditions for such awards. The maximum payout for these performance shares is 200%, which, assuming a value per share of \$55.43, would equate to \$4,000,050 for Mr. Shattock; \$880,006 for Mr. Probst; \$880,006 for Mr. Newlands; \$599,974 for Mr. Baldock and \$599,974 for Mr. Baladi.
- (4) **Founders Grants:** The values for 2011 in Columns D and E include one-time founders grants to the NEOs. In recognition of the changing roles of the NEOs in connection with the Home & Security spin-off, the Compensation Committee awarded one-time founders grants to the NEOs effective as of October 4, 2011. The founders grants were issued in the form of stock options and RSUs, each weighted equally in economic value.

(5) **Option Awards:** The amounts listed in Column E reflect the grant date fair values calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. For assumptions used in determining these values, see footnote 5 to the consolidated financial statements contained in the Company s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

40

Table of Contents

- Non-Equity Incentive Plan: Column F lists amounts earned under the annual incentive plans. For 2012, these amounts include the amounts earned under the long-term incentive program for the 2012 portion of the 2010-2012 performance period and, for Mr. Shattock, a onetime payment for years 2010-2012 performance period for cash settled performance awards under the LTIP. For 2011, these amounts include, for Messrs. Shattock, Probst, Newlands and Baldock, the amounts earned under the long-term incentive program for the 2009-2011 performance period and, for Messrs. Probst, Newlands and Baldock, the 2011 portion of the 2010-2012 performance period. Refer to the Compensation Discussion and Analysis on pages 32 to 36 of this Proxy Statement for more details on the annual incentive plans.
- (7) **Perquisites and All Other Compensation:** In 2012, the Company provided an annual car allowance, financial planning, health club membership and physical examination to Messrs. Shattock, Probst, and Newlands. The annual value of the benefits provided to each executive was as follows: \$21,937 for Mr. Shattock, \$15,260 for Mr. Probst, and \$20,750 for Mr. Newlands. The Company also provided an annual car allowance and physical examinations to Messrs. Baldock and Baladi, and Mr. Baladi also received financial planning assistance. The value of these perquisites was \$31,182 for Mr. Baldock and \$34,944 for Mr. Baladi.

Long-Term Disability and Life Insurance

The amounts in Column G include the amount of all life insurance premiums paid by the Company. For 2012 these amounts were: \$2,315 for Mr. Shattock, \$1,320 for Mr. Probst and \$3,000 for Mr. Newlands. Also included is the amount of long-term disability insurance coverage premiums paid by the Company. For 2012, these amounts were: \$1,152 for each of Messrs. Shattock, Probst, and Newlands and \$8,527 for Mr. Baladi.

Medical and Dental Insurance

The amounts in column G include the cost of all medical and dental insurance provided by the Company. For 2012, these amounts were: \$9,050 for Mr. Shattock, \$9,050 for Mr. Probst, \$8,856 for Mr. Newlands and \$4,678 for Mr. Baladi.

Defined Contribution Benefits, Nonqualified Plan Earnings and Medicare Tax Payments: The amounts in Column G also include:

- (a) Defined Contribution Plan Contributions: Company contributions for 2012 to the Company s tax-qualified defined contribution plan were \$31,658 for each of Messrs. Shattock, Probst and Newlands. The Company contributed \$25,985 (\$25,000 AUD) to Australia s superannuation retirement account for Mr. Baldock. The Company contributed \$55,778 (\$42,278 EUR) to Mr. Baladi s Spanish retirement account.
- (b) Supplemental Plan: The Supplemental Plan credits certain executives with amounts that would have been contributed to their profit sharing accounts under the tax qualified defined contribution plan but for the limitations on contributions imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. Profit sharing credits earned under the Supplemental Plan for 2012 were \$188,211 for Mr. Shattock, \$79,073 for Mr. Probst, and \$83,453 for Mr. Newlands. These amounts were credited to executives accounts in early 2013.
- (c) *Medicare Tax Payments*: The defined contribution credits to the Supplemental Plan are subject to Medicare tax. In 2012, the Company reimbursed the NEOs for Medicare taxes. In 2012, the Company reimbursed the NEOs as follows: \$4,787 for Mr. Shattock, \$2,012 for Mr. Probst, and \$2,124 for Mr. Newlands.

41

2012 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table summarizes grants of plan-based awards during 2012.

			stimated Futur Under on-Equity Ince Awards	Under l ntive Plan Incentiv		outs Equity ve Plan	All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of Stock or		Exercise or Base Price of	Grant Date Fair Value of Stock &	
	TI	hresho	ld	MaximumTh	resho	Harget	Maximum	units	Options	Awards	Awards
Name	Grant Date	(\$)	Target (\$)	(\$)	(#)	(#)	(#)	(#)	(#)	(\$/Sh)	(1)
Matthew J. Shattock											
Annual Bonus	2/21/2012(2)	0	1,250,000	2,500,000							